
United Nation,

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY
FORTY-SECOND SESSION'

Offieial R(l;,.'f}rds*

SPECIAL POLITICAL COMMITTEE
17th meeting

held on
Friday, 6 November 1987

at 10 a.m.
New York

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 17th MEETING

Chairman I Mr. AL-KAWARI (Qatar)

later: Mr. GONZALEZ (Chile)

CONTENTS

AGENDA ITEM 76: INTERNATIONAL CO-OPERATION IN THE PEACEFUL USES OF OUTER SPACE
(continued)

(a) REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON THE PEACEFUL USES OF OUTER SPACE (continued)

(b) REPORT OF THE Sl:,.cRETARY-GENERAL (continued)

-TlIi1._ .. tubjo<tto--'. e-uo.olIc!lII411e _ ...-... _ ...... do!<.
.....__ ...... - ..... f/f .......... ."............. 10 ... CIliof 0lIi0:iIIa-ds 6IIIIiIt sea-.
_DQ.7SlI. ~__l'Iua._~•• _ ......s.

Distr. G8NBRM.
A/SPC/42/SR.17
16 November 1987
ENGLISH
ORIGINAL: FREJ«:H



A/SPC/42/SR.17
English
page 2

The meeting was ('alled to order at. 10.30 a.m.

AUENDA ITEM 76. INTERNAT10NAL CO-OPERATION IN THE PEACEFUL USES OF Ot11'ER SPACE
(continued)

(a) REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON THE PEACEFUL USES OF Ot11't:R SPACE (cont inued)
(A/42/20)

(b) REPORT OF THE S£CRETARY-GENERAL (continued) (A/42/518 and Corr.l)

1. The CHAIRMAN recalled that at the Committee's fifth meeti~g he had drawn
attention to documftne A/SPC/42/L.5 in which the Chairma~ .f the Fifth Committee had
asked him to transmit to him, no later than the first week of Novemb~r, any views
that the Special Political Committee might wish to express on programme planning
and the preparation of the next medium-term plan. All such comments were to have
been submitted in writing before 4 November. Since he had received no
communications, he would inform the Chairman of the Fifth Co~ittee that the
Special Political Committee had no comments to make.

2. Mr. KAKOLECK: (Poland) observed that sincft the launchi ; of the first
artifIcIal satellite, Sputnik, 30 years ear11,r, space research and technology had
advanced rapidly, broadening human knowledge anj unde:standing of the universe ~nd

making a valuable contribution to the solution of many problams on Earth. From the
outset of the spacft era, various united Nations resolutions had established the
important principle of the exploration and use of out~r space exclusively for
peaceful pur~ses. That tund~ental rule had served as the basis for a whole
series of resoluticns and international treaties the objentive of which was to
prevent an arms race in space.

3. Poland fully endorsed all initia~iveB aimed at developing peaceful
co-operation in outer space, it supportsd the proposal to establish a world space
organization and the suggestion that the Committee on the Peaceful Used of outer
Space (COPUOS) should make concrete prorosals on how to conduct a study on the
needs of States with respect to the use of space technology within the framework of
broad interaational co-operation.

4. While noting with satisfaction that COPUOS had once again Lecognized in its
report (A/42/20, para. 17) the need to maintain outer epace for peaceful purposes
and had agreed that io; could make import/lilt contributions to that end, his
delegation regretted that its commitment had thus far remained a dead letter. His
delegation hoped that, w.ith the inprovllcl International climatp., that committee
would in the future achieve more satisfactory res~lts.

5. The twenty-fourth session of the Scientific and Technical Sub-CommitteA had
been both useful and interesting. The report of the Working Group of the Whole
contained valuable ideas on the implementation of the racommendations of the Second
United Nations Conference on the Exploration and Peaceful Uses of Outer Space
(UNISPACE 82). The session had also provided his delegation with the opportunity

/ ...



A/SPC/42/SR.17
English
Page 3

(Mr. Kakolecki, Poland)

to review the sc.~entific and technical activities in Poland in fields such as space
physics, geodesy, biology, medicine, satellite meteorology, remote sensing,
telecommunicatior and materials proc~ssing in space. Its activities under the
INTERCOSMOS proqlamme demonstrated the benefits that countries with limited
technological possibilities could derive from friendly international co-operation.

6. AB to the work of the Legal Sub-Committee, the recent adoption of
remote-sensing principles confirmed the fact that, when necessary, even the most
difficult prob~ems could be solved satisfactorily if States were ready to make
compromises. The outstanding questions should be approached in the same way,
particularly the definition and delimitation of outer space, an issue on which it
was increasingly urgent to make progress in view of rapid developments in outer
space Ecience and technology that made for a steady decrease in the altitude and
perigee of orbiting satellites and spa~ecraft. The formula whereby any object
launched into outer space ~uld be considered as being in outer space at all stages
of its flight after launch at which its altitude above sea level was 110 kilometres
or more Gonstituted a constructive step towards a compromise solution.

7. Wi~h regard to the question of the geostationary orbit, it should be noted
that after a long perio~ of stalemate, some points of convergence among different
proposals held out some hope of progress. Poland favoured new efforts to settle
that question in compliance with the 1.967 Outer Space Treaty, since the
geostationary orbit was an integral part of outer space and could not be
appropriated by any State.

8. His delegation, which was following with great interest the work on the
elaboratlon of draft principles relevant to the use of nuclear power sources in
outer space, believed that the essential requirement for achieving tangible reaults
was to take due account of the two Conventions adopted on the question in 1986
under the auspices of the International Atomic Energy Agency.

9. As to the choice of a new item for the agenda of the r.eg~l Sub-Committee, he
hoped that the members of the Special Political Committee would reach a decision by
consenSUA. His delegation rejected any suggestions for limiting or shortening the
work of the Legal Sub-Committee, which must receive all the resources it needed in
order t, discharge its important responsibilities.

10. Mr. OKELY (Australia) said that for nearly three decades the States Members of
the United Nations had been working to develop out~r space - humankind's lasc
frontier - for peaceful purposes. The previous year had been o~e of consolidation
and some proqress. His delegation noted with partiCUlar satisfaction the
resumption of the United States space programme. For Australia, which on
15 September had launched its third communications satellite (AUSSAT-III) aboard a
European Ari~ne launcher. 1987 had been a significant year. With three satellites
in orbit, it was at last able to provide modern and efficient communications
facilities to the remotest parts of the Australian continent.

11. Australia placed great value on the deliberations of COPUOS and was pleased
that during the three Sessions in 1987 it had continued to adopt its decisions by

/ ...



A/SPC/42/SR.17
English
Page 4

(Mr. Okely, Australia)

consensus. Another welcome trend was towards more t~hnical and less polemical
discussion in the SCientific and Technical Sub-Commit~ee.

12. His delegation, like many others, was concerned to note that the operating
budget for the United Nations Programme on Space Applications had been reduced to
less than half of the origi. ~.l 1987 allocation. It was of the strong opinion that
the priorities within the Outer Spaoe Affairs Division should be reviewed and
possibly rearranged in order to use the available funds to best effect.

13. Some progress had been made in the Legal Sub-Committee towards an agreement on
a r'gime for the operation of nuclear power souroes in space, but a number of
technical issues remained unresolved, and it might be useful to examine them in a
working group. His delegation was pleased that the Soviet Union would join a
consensus on the re-establishment of such a working group.

14. The topic selected as a new item on the agenda of the Legal Sub-CommittGe must
be capable of leading to the elaboration of legal principles. But the proposals
made so far did not meet all the requisite conditions. It might be more useful for
the Special Political Committee to direct its efforts to the items already on the
agenda and to give serious oonsideration to reducing the length of the Legal
SUb-Committee's session to two weeks and leaving the agenda as it currently stood.
As the issue was contentious, it would be best to consider the question at the
session of the Legal Sun-Committee in 1988.

15. If the Committee and its SUbsidiary bodies wanted their work to have any
import, they must do everything in their power to adopt decisions by consensus.
His delegation was pleased to note that at all sessions, States had steered clear
of issues concerning the militarization of outer space, which belonged exclusively
in the First Committee, all members of t.he Committee should work to oppose any
attempt to reintroduce them, because that would trigger a crisis similar to that
of ),983-1984.

16. Mr. FERM (Sweden) said that despite the progress made since t~e entry into
force, in 1967, of the Treaty on principles Governing the Activities of States in
the Exploration and Use of outer Space, there was still room for a further
strengthening of the relevant legal r'gime. So far, outer space had remained free
from armed conflict, but thera was still a possibility that the arms race might
spread into outel space, and the deployment of anti-satellite weapons and other
weapons systems could c!eate a dangerously unstable situation and jeopardize the
peaceful use of outer space.

17. The question of an arms race in outer space must be considered in the general
context of dIsarmament, and the conference on Disarmament was the appropriate forum
for negotiations on an agreement or agreements relating to such questions. The
importance of bilateral negotiations on space weapons between the United States and
the Soviet Union should no:, however, be minimized. Multilateral and bilateral
~fforts should complement each other. Unfortunately, there had been very little
progress in the talks between the super-powers. He hoped that the improved

I ...



A/SPC/42/SR.17
En~l1sh

Page 5

(Mr. Ferm, Sweden)

international climate would contribute to r.eaching an agreement on the prevention
of an arm~ race in space.

18. As accidents involving spacecraft with nuclear power sources on board could
affect any country, the international community must give priority to the
establishment of safety regUlations. In 1986, the Legal Sub-Committee had reached
agreement on two principles, one concerning notification and the other assistance
to Stat Since then, no progress had been made. Hie delegation th"refore
proposea that both Sub-Committees should be given the assirtance of a working gcoup
to facilitate its ~rk.

19. The implementation oC the recommendations of UNISPACE 82 must be accelerated.
The Working Group of the Whole set up by the Sci~ntific and Technical Sub-Committee
to evaluate the progress made in that area could contribute greatly to that end.
Without financial support, it would not be possible to implement the recommendation
to strengthen the United Nations Dpace Applications Pr~ramme. As a result of the
financial crisis in the united Nations, the re.ource allocations for the prograll1l1e
had been drastically reduced. He hoped that more countrie. would make
contributions to the Programme.

20. Throughout its eXistence, the Committee on the Peaceful Uses of Outer
Space (COPUOS) had made very positive contributions to Jeveloping outer space law,
but if it was to be equally effective in the future, it must be prepare~ to
consider improving its organization and working methods as needs and conditions
changed.

21. COPUOS had agreed that the Legal SUb-Committee could t:. .... or. new tasks.
Consideration should be given, in the near future, to the field of "space
enVironment", inclUding "space debriS", and the elaboration of reconrndations to
improve the implementation of the 1975 Convention on Registrstion of Objects
Launched into Outer Space. Registration procedures could be futtncr improved. The
international community would bE'nefit from more timely and approl-,ute information
~n apace objecta and their missions. Increased openness on those &ctivities,
following the example CIf relation13 between the super-Powers in the military field,
would enhance confidence between States.

22. ~~ (Indonesia) stressed the great importance that applicationY of
space technology had for the economic, social and cultural proqress of the
developing countries. Numerous achievements testified to hit Government's firm
det~rmination to utilize space science and technology to advance development.
Indonesia had also pr~moted regional co-operation by launching its Palapa satellite
communications system.

23. OVer th~ years, the work of the Committee had demonstrat~d the importance of
int.ernational co-operation in the peaceful use of outer spa~e. The cost nf space
activities was such that developing countries were dependent on external
assistance. Co-operation was particularly n<!eded in traini"':}, research and
adaptation of. technology. Indonesia continued, to the best of its ability, to

I ...



A/SPC/42/SR.17
English
Page 6

(Mr. Wlryono, Indones1s)

share its experienc~ with other developing countries. It also hosted meetings of
experts and regional seminars organIzed by the united Nations.

24. Im~~Amentation of the recommendationo of UNISPACE 82 waD crucial for the
developing countries. His Government welcomed the work of the Working Group of the
Whola of the Scien~ific and Technical Sub-Committee which had l~d to concrete
recommendations on expanding operational activities and incr&asing co-operation.
His delegation regretted that the budget of the Unlted Nations Space Applications
Programme for the bie~nium 1986-1987 had been reduced to less than half and hoped
that the advanced States, the United Nations specialized agencies al~ financial
institutions would provide the Programme with adequate support, particularly co
carry out activities related to tra!ning and higher education.

25. International co-operation was also of great importance in elaborating legal
instruments governing ac tiv i ties in outer space, and his delegat ion therefore fully
endorsed the proposal of the Group of 77 to include on the agenda of the Legal
Sub-Committee consideration of legal aspects related to the accesa of States to tbe
benefits derived from the exploration and utilization of outer space.
Consideration of that item would complement the efforts of the Scientific and
Technical SUb-Committee, and experience had shown simultaneous considnration of
interrelated issues had contributed to the delieerations of the two Sub-Committees.

26. His delegatlon noted with satisfaction that the examination of the item on the
geostationary orbi t by the relevant Wor king Group had been he ili tated b~' the
comparative chart subm)':ted bl' Indonesia, and expreBled the hope that members of
the Legal Sub-Committee would work in unison at the Sub-Committee's following
session. However, it regretted that the Working Group responsible for considering
the elaboration of draft principles relevant to the use of nuclear pOwer sources in
outer space had been unable to reach an agreement. It believed that the ~orking

paper in that regard submitted by Canada was a good basis tor considering that item.

27. Indonesia was gravely concerned about the possible extension of the arn's race
into outer space. It would be advisable to define the practical arrangements for
collaboration between the Committee and the Conference on Disarmament, so that the
latter could benefit from the Committ&e's vast experience in that fiald.

28. Mr. TANASIE (Romania) said that th9 international situation was far from
reassuring. The arms race, in particular, had reached alarming proportions, and
nuclear tests continued. Not only h&d contlicts not diminished, but th~y had
worsened, posing an increasing threat to intJrnational peace and security, and
endangering the entire planet. It was thus ellsent.ial to reI· 'Ilnce the theory that
nuclear force was a guarantee of secur i ty, and to prevent the mi li tar izat ion of
outer space at all costs. At the same tim~, it was necessary to define the legal
and political framework for co-operat ion which wOlld place space techllology at the
service of all States for their equitable economic and social development. It was
unfortunate that the Committee had been unable to reach practical agreement in thal
area.

I ...



A/SPC/42/SR.17
English
Page 7

(Mr. Tanasie, Romanial

29. Ou~er sp~ca was part of mankind's heritag~. It was thus disturbing to note
that it was increasingly being polluted with debris from spacecraft. Likewise, th~

question of satellites with nuclear power sources on board deserved to be
consi~ered more seriously, because of the risks posed by the launching of such
objects. Romania and its President suggested that the General Assembly should
appeal to all States concerned to limit the number of such spacecraft, to begin
negotiations ab soon as popsible with a view to regulating the ~se of outer space
for peacefUl purposes and to draw ~p a rational system for the exploration and
exptoitation of outer space for the benefit of all mankind.

30. Outer space exploration had helped to broaden mankind's knowledge of the Earth
and the universe, and had paved the way for great progress in medicine; biology,
chemistry, electronics and agriculture. Only by institut~onalizin~ international
oo-operation could all States benefit fr~m the applications of space tec~\nology.

His delegation supported the e~aboration of d:aft principles relevant to the use of
nucleaL power sources in outer space. Regarding the definition and delimitation of
outer apace and the character and utilization of the geostationary orbit, he
believed that those questions should be the subject of a new international treaty
on the peacefUl usec of outer space, which would ensure that all countries,
particularly developing ones, had accesss to apace technology for the purpo~e of
economic, cultural and social progress. The proposal, submitted by the Grou~

of 77, to place that item on the agenda of the Legal Sub-Committee deserved careful
consideration. The same attention should be given to the proposal concerni~q the
legal status of a spacecraft crew and the possi~il1ty of e8t~~lish1ng, under the
auspices of the United Nations, a group of experts to prepare a report on States'
needa in using ypace technology, based on a questiunnaire drawn up by the
Secretary-General.

31. His delegation appreciated the work done ~y the Committee and requ~sted it to
redouble its efforts in order to attain tangible results.

32. Mr. Gonz&lez (Chile) took the Chair.

33. Mr. JAWSHAN (Afghanistan) &aid that the Committee on the Feaceful Uses of
Outer Space (COPOUS) was an essential instrument for strengthening co-op~ration in
outer space. His delegation noted with appreciation the financial assiatance which
some Stales and specialized agencies had given COPOUS, particularly regarding the
organization of training and educational programmes under the auspices of the
United Nations. It expressed the hope that the most advanced countries in that
field would incT~ase their assistance to th~ developing countrie~.

34. H~ welcomed the Committee's conclusions concerning the ways and means of
guaranteeing that outer space woulu be maintained for peaceful purposes. He called
attention to the proposal for the establishment of an international centre for
joint research and technology for the benefit of developing countries, and 5aid
that the proposal sllbmitted by a number of socialist countries (A/42/20, annex Ill)
under agenda iten. 4 could greatly help to advance the Committee's work.
Afghanistan, like the members of the Movement of Non-Aligned Countries and the

/ ...



A!SpC/42/SR.17
English
Page 8

(Mr. Jawshan, Afghanistan)

socialist countries, had always rejected any attempt to extend the arms race into
outer space and it particularly regretted ~rojects such as the Strategic Defenee
1nl tiative, known as "star wars". It therefore welcomed the Soviet-American
negotiations in Geneva, which might pave the way for an agreement on the
non-proliferation of weapons in outer space.

35. Mr. TEWARY (India) said that the application of space technology could
effectively help to tackle some of the major development problemo, provided that it
was focused on obtaining practical results for the benefit of all nations. It was
thus necessary to set up new mechanisms to extend the benefits of that technology
immediately to all countries.

36. COPOUS was the appropriate forum for trying to reconcile States' training
needs and the capabilities and experience available in a large number of
countries. It was alao necessary to ensure long-term project-oriented on-the-jOb
training, which would serve to resolve a COl try's particular problems and train a
sufficient numbe: of specialists from each country in key application areas. Such
measures required increased international co-operation.

37. India's programme for sharing its knowledge and experience in outer space with
other countries was progressing satisfactorily. The global telecommunications
system of the World Meteorological Organization received data provided by the very
high-resolution radiometer of INSAT. India and the United States were also using
its data in their joint monsoon research programme. The INSAT-IB satellite sys~em,

launched by the American space shuttle Challenger, had extended the national
telp.vision network, which now covered 50 per cent of the population. India ale?
had co-operation agreements with the European Space Agency, France, Japan, the
Netherlands, tt.e Soviet Union, and, particularly, with the German Democratic
Republic. In addition, it had organized workshops and provided training for
spec ialists from other countr ies under its educat ional system.

38. The failures of a number of missions in 1986 had u~derscored the fragility of
a system on which a large number of nations depended and the need to establish new
mechanisms, both by individual nations and by bodies such as COPUOS. Despite
certain setbacks, India had made substantial progress in space applications for
development. It had initiated projects concerni~g particular applications in
agriculture, land use, water resources, forestry, geology, marine resources and
environment.

19. Since the end of the 1960s i~ had also been successfully pursuing a satellite
launching programme, and believed that it could launch IRS-type remote sensing
satellites by 1990 and, second-generation INSAT satelll,tes by 1993 or 1994, thuA
making it totally self-reliant. It had also attempted to involve national
industries in the space programme by transferring over 100 new technologies to them.

40. India believed that the work of COPUOS and of the Legal Sub-Committee was
particularly useful for strengthening international co-operation and
understanding. It hoped that pending questions would be resolved in the spirit of

I ...



A/SPC/42/SR.17
Engl1sh
Page 9

(Mr. Tewary, India)

consensus whh~h had cha racter i zed the deliberations of the two Committees, and that
efforts would be made to overcome current financial difficulties.

41. His delegation firmly opposed the militarization of outer space. In
article IVof the Outer Space Treaty, States had undertaken not to place in orbit
arounJ the Earth any objects carryinq nuclear weapons or any other kinds of weapons
of mass destruction, or station weapons 1.1 outer space in any other manner.
Unfortunately tl.4'l space Powers were developing sophisticated new weapons that would
revolutionize modern warfare and turn outer space into an armed camp.

42. The summit meetings held between Pre3ident Reagan and General
Secretary Gorbachev during the preceding year had raised the hope that the
prevailing stalemate in disarmament negot.iations would be broken. India attached
great importance to the proclaimed objectives of the bilateral negotiations between
the United States and the Soviet Union, namely: to prevent an arms race in outer
space, to end the arms race on Earth and, ultimately, to eliminate nuclear arms
everywhere.

43. Collective security could be built only on mutual trust and co-operation.
Prevention of the militarization of outer space was an arduous task. Yet given the
will and the determination, the goal of total elimination of out~r space ~eapons

could be aChieved through a gradual process of mutual concessions which must be
initiated by ~ractical steps as early as possible.

44. Mr. SCHLICK~ (German Democratic Republic) said that all States, in particular
those with major ~pace capabilities, should contribute actively to the prevention
of an arms race in outer space. The :ituation continued to be complex and
contradictory. On the one hand, a process of nuclear disarmament was beginning to
take shape as was Shown in the po~sibility of agreements on the elimination of
medium- and shorter-range missiles, but, on the other hand, the dimension of the
arms race, and particularly the attempts to ~xtend it to outer space, COntinued to
be a matter for concern. In order to eliminate the nuclear threat, the German
Democrat ic RepUblic advocated str ict cnmpl1ance wi th the 'freaty on the Limi tat ion
of Anti-Ballistic Missile Systems, the non-militarization of outer space and a
comprehensive ban on nuclear-weapon tests.

45. The Committee on the Peaceful Uses of Outer Space (COPUOS) had an important
role to play in the prevention of an arms race in outer space and its mandate
should be reaffirmed by the General Assembly at its fort~'-second session. The
German Democratic RepUblic hoped thAt a consensus would emerqe on the organization
and methods which would be best suited to facilitate the progress of the
Committee's work.

46. International co-operation in the exploration and peaceful uses of outer space
was assuming lh~reaslng lmportanr.e. The benefits of joint scientific and technical
activities was obvious, as had been demonstrated by such programmes as the
COSPAS/SARSAT rescue system and the Kvant astrolaboratory. The peaceful use of
outer space within a framework cf co-operation among all Statec should make it

I ...



A/SPC/42/SR.17
English
Page :'0

(Mr. Schlicke, German Democrbtic Republic)

possihle to resolve the world's urgent problems in the field of economic
development, proteotion of the environment and the development of n.w sources of
.nergy. Many proposals had been made in that connection, inclu~ing the three-wtage
programme propo.ed by the Soviet Union for greater international co-op~r~tion for
the bflnefit of all. 1'he Gerrr,an Democratic Republic support.d the ••tabli.hm.nt of
a world spac~ organization a~ an international re••arch c.ntr. which would provide
assistanee to the d.veloping countries ~nd train exp.rt. from t.ho.e countrie.. A
realistic appraisal of the n~eds of State. in the tield Lf spac. technology would
be helpful in connection with the planning and implementation of fu~ure space
activities. Careful ccmsideration should be given to the id.a of conv.ning an
international conference or a special session of the G.n.ral A•••mbly for the
purpose of making a comprehensive study ~f the pro.pect. for int.rnational
co-operation in the peacef~i use. of outer .pace.

47. The Unite~ Nation. Programme on Spac. Application. was an ••••ntial compon.nt
it, the implementation of the recommendat::'ons mildii ~N UNISPACE 82. In the framework
of that programme, the German Democrat~c RepUblic had oft.r.d thr.e t.llow.hip. tor
the ye~( 1987/88 on r.mote sen.ing ot th, Earth, geode.y by .at.llite. and .pace
relearch. A United Nations-spon.ored trai~inq ~~ur.e on application. of remote
sen.ing to the geological science. had been held in Dr.sden in October 1987 and hi.
Gov.rnm.nt was ready to assign experts to lecture at event. in the cont.xt ot the
programme.

48. Concerning the work of the Legal Sub-Committee, the elaboration of principles
relevant to the u.e of nuclear power sourcea should take into account the
provisions of the Conv.ntion on Early Notification of a Nuclear Ac~id.nt and the
Convention on A.sistance in the Cas. of a Nuclear Accident ~r Radiological
Emergency tuopted by tlte International AtOI~i,:: Energy Agency.

49. The German Democratic RepUblic attached great importance to the definition of
outer space a~ the establishing of a boundery between airspace and outer .pace.
It also c '. sidared that the discuuion 011 the phyuical nature ot the geostationary
orbit and its rational a~ equitable use should be continued. In conclusion, it
ho~d that the Special Political Committee would be able to reach agr.ement on a
new item for the agenda of the Legal Sub-Committee.

50. Mr. ADEYEMI (Nigeria) said that the Working Group of the Whol~ established by
the SCIentific-a~ Technical Sub-Committee to evalu~te the implementation of the
recommendations of UNISPACE 82 had agreed on a set of recommendations on means to
improve the execution of activities relating to international co-operation in outer
space and, in particular, activities relating to the Ptogramme on space
Applications. Certain of those recommendations were of particular importance for
developing countries, including those relating to training methods at the regional
and international level and co-operation with the specialized agencies and other
intergovernm~ntal organizations in the field of space science tachnology.

/ ...



A/SPC/42/SR.17
English
Page 11

(Mr. Adeyemi, Nigeria)

51. The Special Political Committee had for some time attached importance to
international co-operation in the peaceful application of space science and
technology, and the Secretary-General had himself taken measures to strengthen the
capability of the Outer Space Affairs Division by providing additional technical
personnel in 1983 in accordance with General Assembly resolution 37/90. Currently,
funds were lacking for implementation of the proposed programmes. The allocation
for 1987 had been reduced to $US 48,000 compared with an original total of
$US 110,200. Member States should make efforts to increase their voluntary
contributions to the Programme, but caution must be exercised to avoid starving it
of badly-needed funds to enable it to discharge its mandate in accordance with the
recommendations of UNISPACE 82 and of the working Group of the Whole. It was
therefore important to increase the allocation through rearrangement of priorities
within the next regular budget. The importance of the Programme for the developing
countries was demonstrated by the fact that, between 1983 and 1986, there had been
more than 1,500 applicants for the seminars and courses on advanced space
technology. Out of that total, only 688 had been able to participate in a total of
22 training courses, workshops and meetings of experts. Long-term fellowships had
been awarded to 42 candidates out of 226 applicants. It was apparent that the
demand far exceeded the opportunities available. His delegation therefore appealed
to Member States for more generous contributions to the Programme and for increased
assistance from intergovernmental organizations. For its part, the Nigerian
delegation had announced during the latest session of COPUOS t~at it would make a
voluntary contribution of $5,000 to the Programme. In April 1987, his Government
had hosted, in co-operation with the Outer Space Affairs Division, the United
Nations Meeting of Experts on Space Science and Technology and its Applications
within the Framework of Educational Systems for the benefit of States members of
the Economic Commission for Africa and the Economic and SOCial Commission for
Western Asia. The participants had been able to outline principles regarding the
definition of national goals, the formulation of policies and the implementation of
strategies for the development of space science and technology and their
application to local needs. They had also established guidelines and procedures
for introducing elementary courses on technology into educational curricula of the
different countries and had identified areas which should be given priority
attention. In addi.tion they had made recommendations to Governments on matters to
be addressed at the regional level.

52. With regard to the use of nuclear power sources in outer space, his delegation
stressed that particular consideration should be given to the needs of developing
countries, which should receive special assistance in the event of malfunctioning
space objects with nuclear power sources on board or accidents causing the re-entry
of such space objects. The progress made during the twenty-sixth session of the
Legal Sub-Committee seemed to indicate that the draft principles relevant to the
use of nuclear power sources in outer space could be completed in the next few
years. His delegation felt that the proposals made by Canada constituted a good
basis for further consideration of that question. Nigeria supported the
distinction between assistance to States and compensation, which was the
responsibility of the launching State. Emphasis should be placed on timely
notification and international co-operation in the event of an unplanned re-entry

/ ...



A/SPC/42/SR.17
!:nglish
Pagfl 12

(Mr. Arleyemi, Nigeria)

of space vehicles with nuclear power sources on board. The Working Group on
nuclear power sources should be reconvened during the twenty-seventh session of the
Legal Sub-Committee in order to continu'~ the consideration of that question,
including the activation of nuclear reactors in space vehicles. In that
connection, Nigeria's positioll was that activation should be subject to att~inm~~t

of nuclear-safe orbit.

~3. The question of the definition and delimitation of the geostationary orbit h~d

been considered by COPUOS for years without substantial progress being made. His
deleqatlon attached great import.ance to that question beclluse of the progress mat'!e
In space science and technology, which had made it possible to reduce the altitude
and perigee of orbitinq oatellites. Such dovelopments increased the risk of
unauthorized surveillance for doveloping countries. There was no interraticmal
aqreement on the delimitation of outer space and, similarly, there were no
unlvp-rsally recognized national space boundaries. Under such conditions, remote
sensing of nalional natural resources had been carrl,ed out and certain information
concerning national territories had been obtained without giving notification or
requesting permission from the sensed States. The developing countries were at a
particular disadvantage because of their lower level of space technology, in ~pite

of the protection supposedly providecl to them through the legal principles on
remote sensing. With regard to thp- delimitation of outer space, his delegation
reaffirmed its preference for a limit of 90 kilometres abovp- the Earth's surface.
Referring to the c.hoice of a new item to bF.! included in the agenda of the Legal
Sub-CommittF.!e, his delegation recalled that the first proposal made by the Group
of 77 ~ad enioyed wit'!e support from Member States and had lIubsequently been ament'!I~t'!

ant'! amplified in order to tnke into consideration the concerns of certain
~F.!1p.gation9, general principles of international law, the 1967 Out~r Space Treaty
ant'! the recommendations of UNISPACE 82. At its thirtieth session, COPUO!'l had
recommende~ that a d~cision nhoult'! hp- taken on that quelltion at the forty-second
qussinn of the General Assembly, ant'! hi~ deleqation hop~t'! that the propo~nl of the
Group of 77 would be adopted.

54. With regard to developments in space science ant'! technology in Nigeria, he
said that diqital telecommunication systems had been introduced in ort'!er to improve
satellite telecommunications. Improved maritime communication!> w<!rf> also being
plannerl. Thp. progre!lB in thO!':'J two areaA had heen niqnificant. "he National
~'mmittp.p. on Space !'lciencp. and Technol(~y had been strengthened to enable it to
meet rp.qui rP-Rip.nts i r specif ic areas, nuch aB remote sensl. ng. The prior itV
obj~ctivp. was still the traininq of appropriate technical ~er!lonnel anrl the
Niqerinn novernment hopnt'! to receive aSBistan~e in that field from the nut0r Space
Aff~lr8 Oivision and competent specialized ag.ncies.

~~. Mr. PERRI (Brazil) s~id that in 1987 the international community was
commemorating the thirtieth anniversary of the launching of the first man-made
Earth n"tp.lll.te, sputnik. Since then, man had landed on the Moon and sent proh'~R

t.o othnr cp.lestial bodies. The United Nations, for its part, had estahlished the
Committee on the Peaceful Uses of Outer Spacp-, which dealt with inter-State
rp.labol's in that new field of human act:1 vi t1e~J. Through its T,egl.ll Sub-Commit tee,

/ ...



A/SPC/42/SR.l7
Enql1l1h
Paqe 11

(Mr. Perri, ara~il)

COPUOS had been abl~ to elaborate a body of international norms and principles
which currently formod the core of intern3tional space law. The most recent
contri~ltlcn to th~t endeavour had been the adoption of Aeneral Assembly resolution
41/65 on princ'plDA relatinq to remote B~nBinq, after mnre thnn a decad~ of
neqotiations. However, there were still broader perspectives ahead for
strengtheninq th~ l~gal framework for RpJCe activities, which should foster
technological progress and intcrnationRl cn-op~ration In that area. Those qo~ls

could not be achieved unless outer space continued to be used ~or peacefal purpoRPs
only. COPUOS should therefore be allowed t~ identify space activities which were
inconsistent with the maintenance of peace.

56. It was encourag.ng to note that a Working Group of the Whole had been
established during the twenty-fourth session of the Rcientific and Technical
Rub-Committee in order to evaluate the implementation of the recommendations of
UNISPACE 82. Thanks to that evaluation, the f>uh-CommittNI had been able to adopt
concrete recommendations on that question. Thp Worklnq r.rollp had not,..d,
inter alia, that the budqet for the Proqrammf' on Space Applications had been
reduced to lees than ha'f ;)f its original appropriation for ~he bl.ennium
1986-1987. His delegation felt that that undesirable trend might undermine th~

efforts of the Outer Space Affairs Division and the Expert on Space Applications.
Brez il acti vely supported the Progr amme on Space Applications by providi ng
long-term fellowships in remote sensing and, for that reanon, he appealed to other
Rtates, particularly those with major space capabilities, to join the small qroup
of countries which made voluntary contributions to the Programme.

,I. It was disappointing to note that the work of the Legal Sub-Committee at it~

twenty-sixth session hsd been much lesR fruitful. Brazil attached great import~nce

to the task of elaborating draft ~rincipleR relevant to the use of nuclear pow~r

sources in outer space. Owing to the Rize of itR territory, Brazil was
particularly expoRed to the consequenceR of the uncontrolled re-entry of a npac~

objflct with a nuclear power source on hoard. Unfortunately, the pro!lpects for
progress evident ~t the 1986 session of the Rub-Committee had not materiali7.ed in
the palt year. It waB neceBsary to step up efforts to br idqe the gap bptwefOn the
national positions in that area. Similarly mooest proqress had been made with
regard to the definition and delimitation of outer space and the character and
utilization of the geostationary orbit. Tha delimitation of outer npace
constituted a political as well 48 4 laq~l prohlem pertaininq to the applicability
of space laws to concrete situationp. That question ghould therefore he renolved
throuqh an internationally binding legal innt.ument. Bra~il favoured the
elaboration of a special legal r'gime which took into account the special np~dn of
the developing countries.

58. with regard to the choice of a nllw aq ..nda item for the Legal Sub-Committee,
his country supported the proposal made by the Group of 77 for an item on
consideration of the legal aspects rel~ted to access of States te the benefits
derived from the exploration and utilization of outer space, !:,,'C"auRe it fp.lt th..,t
that proposal was the only one that satl:'lfied tilt! nQC:"5sary condHlonr, of
timeliness, legal relevance and universality of ~c:ope. The work of the

I • ••



A!SPC/42/SR.17
English
Page 14

(Mr. Perri, Brazil)

Sub-Committee, which was the only ~u1tilateral body for negotiations on legal
instruments on outer space, ::,hfluld (.llfU the expectationD of the intflrnationa1
community. The best way to rationalize its work was to give it a full mandate and
for all its mambers to show the n~cessary political will to achieve concrete
progress in the areas under consideration.

59. Mrs. RUIZ-ZAPATA (Mexico) requested the Chairman to give more time to those
members of the Committee who might wish to make comments in reply to the letter
from the ChAirman of the Fifth Committee (A/SPC/42/L.5).

60. ~he CHAIRMAN said that, if he heard no objection, he would take it that the
Committee acceded to that request, it being understood that the views which members
wished to ex?ress on that question would be transmitted to him in writing as
speedily a~ possible so that he could communicate them to the Ch~irman of the Fifth
Committee.

61. It was so decided.

The meeting rose at 12.30 p.m.


